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MELINDA HAAG (CABN 132612)
United States Attorney o

SEALED
BY COURT ORDER

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
OAKLAND DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, % e ﬁ g 2 8 &‘?

Plaintiff,

VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C. § 287 - False
Claims to United States Agency

V.

DENISE LASHAWN REED,
a’k/a Brooke Nicholson, Lauren Roberts,
Denise Berry, Savana Jones, Neyce Roberts, OAKLAND VENUE

Defendant.

N Mt S S S N e e N N

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury charges:
COUNT ONE: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)
1. On or about January 28, 2009, in the Northemn District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,
a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,
a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,

a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency

of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
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refund of taxes in the amount of $6,097, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2008 in the name of S.C. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.
COUNT TWO: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

2. On or about January 16, 2010, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United Stétes Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $6,337, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2009 in the name of S.C. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT THREE: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

3. On or about May 12, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,
a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,
a/k/a Lauren Roberts,
a/k/a Denise Berry,
a/k/a Savana Jones,

p a/k/a Neyce Roberts,

Indictment 2
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a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency

of the United States Départment of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a

refund of taxes in the amount of $5,702, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and

fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and

causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
_year 2008 in the name of J.D. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled. '

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT FOUR: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

4. On or about January 21, 2010, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $6,717, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2009 in the name of J.D. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sectioh 287.

COUNT FIVE: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

5. On or about May 21, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the
defendant,
DENISE LASHAWN REED,
a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,
a/k/a Lauren Roberts,
a/k/a Denise Berry,

Indictment 3
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a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment ofa
refund of taxes in the amount of $6,000, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2008 in the name of J.F. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.
COUNT SIX: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)
6. On or about May 29, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to thellnternal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $7,566, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2008 in the name of R.J. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT SEVEN: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

7. On or about February 1, 2010, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

Indictment 4
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DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Tréasury, a claim against the United States for payment ofa
refund of taxes in the amount of $4,496, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2009 in the name of R.J. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT EIGHT: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

8. On or about May 4, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $7,611, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2008 in the name of R.K. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

/l
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COUNT NINE: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)
9. On or about January 25, 2010, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internial Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $9,360, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2009 in the name of R.K. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.
COUNT TEN: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)
10. On or about April 16, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $8,326, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and

causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the

year 2008 in the name of J.O. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not

Indictment ' 6
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entitled.
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.
COUNT ELEVEN: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)
11. On or about March 11, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $4,124, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared,'and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2008 in the name of D.R. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled. .

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT TWELVE: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

12. On or about July 14, 2009, in the Northemn District of California, the

defendant,
DENISE LASHAWN REED,
a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,
a/k/a Lauren Roberts,
a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,
a’k/a Neyce Roberts,

a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $8,424, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and

fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and

Indictment ' 7
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causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2008 in the name of L.W. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT THIRTEEN: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)
13. On or about January 27, 2010, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,

a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,

a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,
a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency
of the-United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a
refund of taxes in the amount of $8,424, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2009 in the name of L.W. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not
entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

COUNT FOURTEEN: (18 U.S.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim)

14. On or about January 27, 2010, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant,

DENISE LASHAWN REED,
a/k/a Brooke Nicholson,
a/k/a Lauren Roberts,

a/k/a Denise Berry,

a/k/a Savana Jones,

a/k/a Neyce Roberts,

a resident of Dublin, California, made and presented to the Internal Revenue Service, an agency

of the United States Department of Treasury, a claim against the United States for payment of a

Indictment 8
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refund of taxes in the amount of $7,818, which she then and there knew to be false, fictitious, and
fraudulent. REED made the claim by preparing and causing to be prepared, and presenting and
causing to be presented to said agency, a U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, for the
year 2009 in the name of M.M. that requested a refund to which the defendant knew she was not

entitled.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 287.

A True Bill
Dated: 27k ()W
FOREPERSON
MELINDA HAAG
United States Attorney
2 / £ 0/.7 4’/ %
MIRANDA KANE

Chief, Criminal Division

Approved as to Form

Vs

CYNTHIA STIER
Assistant United States Attorney
Tax Division
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